

# AYSO REGION 91 COACHES MANUAL

2016 - 2017 Season

# **Table of Contents**

1	INT	RODUCTION	6
	1.1	2015 - 2016 Region 91 Organization	7
2	AYS	80	8
	2.1	What is AYSO?	8
	2.2	AYSO Vision Statement	8
	2.3	AYSO Mission Statement	8
	2.4	The AYSO Team	9
	2.5	Achieving Our Goals	9
	2.6	How Region 91 Fits In	9
	2.7	Regional Board	9
	2.8	Region 91 Community Relationships	9
3	WH	Y AREYOU COACHING?	11
4	Spo	nsorships	13
	4.1	Team Sponsors	13
	4.2	Fundraising	13
5	TEA	AM SELECTION	14
	5.1	Divisions U5 Jamboree	14
	5.2	Divisions U6 and U8	14
	5.3	Divisions U10 through U19	14
	5.4	Player Ratings	14
	5.5	Special Requests	15
	5.6	Player Trades	15
	5.7	Children of Coaches & Assistant Coaches	15
6	FIN	AL TEAM ROSTER	16
	6.1	Changes to Final Team Rosters	16
	6.2	Player Transfers	16
	6.3	Deletions to Final Team Roster	16
	6.4	Waiting List	17
	6.5	Player Registration after Team Selection	17
	6.6	Team Names/Colors	17
	6.7	Non-Registered Players & Volunteers	18
7	DIV	ISION ORGANIZATION	19

	7.1	Sma	all Sided Games	19
	7.2	U-5	Jamboree	19
	7.3	U-6		20
	7.4	U-8		20
	7.5	U-1	0	20
	7.6	U-1	2	20
	7.7	U-1	4	21
	7.8	U16	and U19	21
	7.9	Sch	edule Coordinator	21
	7.10	Divi	sion Coordinator	21
8	Co	ach C	ertification and Skills Development	22
	8.1	Play	ver Development	22
	8.2	Coa	ch Development	22
	8.2	2.1	Safe Haven Certification	22
	8.2	2.2	U-6, U-8 and U-10 Coach Courses	22
	8.2	2.3	Youth (U-12) Coach Course	23
	8.2	2.4	Intermediate Coach Course	23
	8.2	2.5	Advanced Coach Course	23
	8.2	2.6	National Coach Course	23
9	CC	ACH	ES AND ASSISTANT COACHES	24
	9.1	Duti	es of Coaches and Officials	24
	9.2	Coa	ch Selection	24
	9.3	Ros	ters, waivers and other paperwork	25
	9.4	Initia	al Contact with the Players	25
	9.5	Par	ent Volunteers	25
	9.6	Play	ver Evaluations	26
	9.7	Tea	m Folders and Coach Mailboxes	26
1(	o s	SAFE	TY GUIDELINES FOR AYSO COACHES	27
	10.1	Prio	r to First Game or Training Session	27
	10.2	At A	ll Team Gatherings	27
	10.3	Inju	ry Prevention	28
	10.4	In T	he Event of Injury	28
1	1 F	-ΔΟΙΙ	ITIES EOLIIPMENT AND TRAINING SESSIONS	30

11.1	Training session location and schedule	30
11.2	Equipment	31
12 T	HE GAME	32
12.1	Timeliness	32
12.2	Player Equipment	32
12.3	Check the Schedule	33
12.4	Come Prepared	33
12.5	Game Cards	33
12.6	Check-In	34
12.7	The Game Ball	35
12.8	Set a Positive Tone for the Game	35
12.9	Playing time	35
12.10	Running Time - Substitutions	35
12.11	Conduct of Coaches and Spectators	35
12.12	After the Game	36
12.13	Animals – Region 91 Activities	36
13 F	REFEREES AND RULES	38
13.1	Providing Volunteer Referees	38
13.	1.1 Team Responsibility	38
13.	1.2 Referee Responsibilities	39
13.2	Match Rules	40
13.	2.1 Player Eligibility	40
13.	2.2 Equitable Play Rule	40
13.	2.3 Player Attire	41
13.3	Conduct	41
13.	3.1 Coach Conduct	41
13.	3.2 Player Conduct	41
13.	3.3 Parent/Spectator Conduct	42
13.	3.4 Continued Disruptive Behavior	42
13.4	The Coach-Referee Team	42
13.5	Region 91's Policy on Abuse of Referees	42
13.6	Negative Competition	43
13.7	Protests	43

13.8	Suspensions	43
14 T	EAM STANDINGS POINT SYSTEM	44
14.1	Point System	44
14.2	Deductions	44
14.3	Final Standings	44
14.4	Post Season Eligibility	45
15 F	Post Season Play	46
15.1	Area/Section Playoffs, All-Stars, and Tournament Teams	46
15.2	Coach Requirements for Post Season	46
15.3	Post Season Eligibility	47
15.	3.1 Volunteer Points Available	47
15.	3.2 Registered and Trained Volunteers	49
15.	3.3 Regular League Team Requirements for Post Season Eligibility	50
15.	3.4 All-Star Team Requirements for Post Season Eligibility	51
15.4	All-Star Coach Selection	51
15.5	All-Star Team Selection	51
15.6	All-Star Uniforms	52
15.7	All-Star Finances	52
15.8	Tournament Team Coach Selection	53
15.9	Tournament Team Selection	53
15.10	Tournament Uniforms	54
15.11		
15.12	Additional Post Season Info	55
15.	12.1 Number of Tournament Teams	
15.	12.2 Post Season Player Requirements	
	12.3 Post Season Team Protocol	
Append	ix I: Sample Letters and Forms	57
	Sample Letter for Parent Meeting	
	Sample Parent's Agreement Form	
	Sample - All-Star or Tournament Coach Consideration Letter	
	ALL-STAR PLAYER RECCOMENDTION FORM	
	Trophy Roster Form	
Append	ix II: Calendar, Helpful Websites & Contact Info	63

# 1 INTRODUCTION

Thank you for volunteering to serve as a coach for the 2016 - 2017 Season. You are a very important member of the American Youth Soccer Organization (AYSO) team. Only with your help can Region 91 provide the highest quality youth soccer program in our community. We wish you the best of luck in your coaching efforts and hope that you will have lots of FUN while spending valuable time with the children of our community.

This manual is your guide to the Region 91 organization and should answer any questions you may have with regard to your team and our region. We hope that the provided information will answer most, if not all, of your questions but you can feel free to approach your Regional Board Members for any additional assistance. Should you find a detail or an answer that has not been included, please notify the Regional Coach Administrator so that it may be included for next season? You can also add in any additional ideas that you might have.

# 1.1 2015 - 2016 Region 91 Organization

- Section 10 Director Rich Pagliari
  - Area 10/D Director Charlie Johnson
    - Region 91 Commissioner Nikolas Malechikos
      - Asst. Regional Commissioner Laurie Munoz
      - Regional Referee Training Administrator Rudy Barrow
      - Regional Referee Administrator Rudy Barrow
        - Asst Regional Referee Administrator –Jon Suchovsky
        - o Referee Scheduler Erick Munoz
        - o Referee Mentor Open
        - Youth Referee Mentor Open
        - Women's Referee Mentor Rachel Lapping
      - Regional Coach Administrator Cris Cierra
        - o Asst. Administrator Open
      - Regional Division Coordinators
        - o U16/U19 Division Coordinator Dana Hooper
        - U14 B/G Division Coordinator Jorge Chavez
        - U12 Boys Division Coordinator Misty Angeles
        - o U12 Girls Division Coordinator Melissa Cierra
        - U10 Boys Division Coordinator Michael Lewis
        - o U10 Girls Division Coordinator Kristin Hovland
        - o U8 Boys Division Coordinator Rachel Lapping
        - o U8 Girls Division Coordinator Samantha Eubanks
        - o U6 B/G Coed Division Coordinator Tiffany Linde
        - o U5 Coed Division Coordinator Lisa Cooper
      - Regional Coach Training Administrators Revell Walker & Michael Halter
      - Post Season Director Cris Cierra
      - Regional Treasurer Evelyn Guillen
      - Regional Registrar Laurie Munoz
      - Regional Secretary Carol Linde
      - Regional Risk Management/Safety Director Richard Montalto
      - Child and Volunteer Protection Advocate Melissa Cierra
      - Scorekeeper/Statistician Erick Munoz
      - Schedule Coordinator Laurie Munoz
      - Uniform Coordinator Tara Baldridge
      - Trophy Coordinator Sandrea Hines
      - Team Parent Coordinator Erin Rudolph
      - Sponsorship Coordinators Nikolas Malechikos & Richard Montalto
      - Webmaster Erick Munoz
      - Hotline Operator Open
      - Picture Day Coordinator Erin Rudolph

Should any questions / needs / problems arise, the proper protocol is to follow the chain of command by reporting to your immediate superior.

# 2 AYSO

### 2.1 What is AYSO?

Everyone Plays! Boys and girls are not registered on their merits as soccer players, but rather on their interest and enthusiasm. Our objectives are to teach, promote, and develop youth soccer in the United States, and to build up America's youngsters in body and character.

All of AYSO coaches, referees, managers and other local officials are volunteer members dedicated to our youth, their communities, and AYSO philosophies and objectives.

The organization is governed by a National Board of Directors and the National President, all of them volunteers. Working closely with the Board of Directors is the staff at the National Support & Training Center in Hawthorne, California. At the NSTC, a multitude of services are provided for the membership: training support for coaches, referees, and local volunteer administrators; data processing services; accounting; accident reimbursement; risk management; tournaments; cultural exchange information; recognition programs; and educational seminars.

The Grass-roots level of AYSO starts with a local, community-based league known as a **Region**. Each Region is headed by a regional Commissioner. Regional Commissioners have the responsibility and authority to conduct the business of the region within the framework of the AYSO philosophies, official policies, national rules and regulations and national bylaws.

Depending on its stage of development, a region might have as few as 12 or as many as 500 teams, grouped for competition into boy and girl divisions by age. VIP divisions for children with special needs exist in many regions as well.

A group of regions in close proximity make up an **Area**. Area Directors are responsible for activities of the Regions in their Area, as well as for Area-wide activities.

For administrative purposes, AYSO divides the country into 14 geographic **Sections** based on player population. Section Directors oversee activities in their respective Sections.

# 2.2 AYSO Vision Statement

To provide world class youth soccer programs that will enrich children's lives.

### 2.3 AYSO Mission Statement

To develop and deliver quality youth soccer programs, which promote a fun, family environment based on our philosophies:

- Everyone Plays
- Balanced Teams
- Open Registration
- Positive Coaching
- Good Sportsmanship
- Player Development

### 2.4 The AYSO Team

The AYSO Team is composed of three elements: coaches, referees, and spectators. The concept of the AYSO Team addresses the need for all adults in our program to be respectful and courteous towards each other as an example to the players. When each member of the AYSO Team works cooperatively and respectfully with the other members of the team, the **kids win!** 

As a member of the AYSO Team, coaches are the most critical guardians of the AYSO philosophy. Coaches are in frequent close contact with the players, our sons and daughters, and are in a position to have the greatest effect on players' skills, attitude, morale, and passion for the game of soccer. It is a trust, and we appreciate your time and energy dedicated to this trust.

# 2.5 Achieving Our Goals

Implementing the AYSO Philosophy requires that winning be within the confines of healthy competition and that more emphasis be placed on fair play and team spirit. There must be a shared vision and cooperation among and between parents, players, coaches, referees and the myriad volunteers who make Region 91 work so well. The AYSO Team must work together. We in Region 91 are fortunate to already have many fine volunteers, but we need to recruit more volunteers, and better retain the volunteers we have. The best way to achieve both of these objectives is create an atmosphere of mutual respect for all volunteers and players in Region 91.

# 2.6 How Region 91 Fits In

The American Youth Soccer Organization (AYSO) has more than 450,000 players throughout the United States. The national organization is divided into Sections, the Sections into Areas, and the Areas into Regions. Region 91 is one of twelve regions in Area D of Section 10. Region 91 was formed in 1975 and currently maintains an annual enrollment level of approximately 800 players.

# 2.7 Regional Board

Region 91 is governed by a Regional Board comprised completely of volunteers. Regional Board members are not paid for performing their duties. Nearly every Board member serves in some other capacity as well, including as coaches and referees. The members of the Board are listed on the Organizational Chart (See Paragraph 1.1) of this handbook. We encourage you to consider becoming a Board member yourself.

# 2.8 Region 91 Community Relationships

Since its beginnings in 1975, Region 91 has relied on the City of Lancaster for use of its park facilities as playing fields. Thanks to the city of Lancaster, we now play all of our regular season games and many of our post-season games (with the exception of U16 and U19 divisions) at the Lancaster National Soccer Center. This is one of the premier soccer facilities in the State and probably in the country.

While other regions are required to maintain fields, maintain goals, paint the field lines and more, we are lucky enough to have this done for us. Not only are we awarded this luxury, but then the city goes the extra mile in maintaining some of the best grass fields you'll find. We need to take every opportunity possible to be thankful that we have such wonderful facilities being provided to us. We also need to respect city personnel when they require us to change fields, or stay off the fields for any reason they may deem as necessary. It is because of these decisions that the grass is kept in good condition.

In conjunction with this, we all need to be aware that we are not the only soccer league that uses this facility and we need to take every opportunity to be friendly to all of the people that we may come across while we are on the fields.

# 3 WHY AREYOU COACHING?

Ask yourself this... Why are you here? What are your hopes and aspirations for your team this season? Are you here for you, or are you truly here... for the kids.

In accepting the position of "Coach" you have been entrusted with much more than the duty of instructing a group of children as they learn how to participate in a team sport. These fresh minds will look to you as their main source of encouragement, mentorship, and as the primary foundation upon which they will build their impression of the game and how to interact in other aspects of their life.

You are the ambassador of the "Game" and how they perceive soccer, the American Youth Soccer Organization (AYSO), and organized sports in general will be determined by your words, actions, and behavior.

Never forget... We are helping children to play a child's game.

As an AYSO coach your principal focus should NOT be the number of goals scored, shots taken, or wins in a season. Rather, your most important goal, as a coach, is scored as you provide the instruction which will lead to the development of not just athletic skill, but sportsmanship, self-esteem and character. These kids are not competing for the World Cup, but to them the approval of their parents and coach (whether they win or lose) will be every bit as important.

Rather than focusing on a player's shortcomings, try to "catch them doing it right". It's very easy to point out a player's shortcomings, however it's infinitely more effective to concentrate on where they're succeeding and use that to guide them in the direction needed to overcome their difficulties. You will be amazed at the response of positive feedback.

Do you recall a person in your childhood that truly made a difference? Perhaps someone encouraged you to believe you could do something you thought impossible, or helped you to recognize something valuable in yourself? What about someone who told you that you couldn't do something, or possibly made an off-handed remark that you took to heart?

How tragic it is that so many adults forget just how devastating a few thoughtless words can be to the fragile, impressionable mind of a child. And yet, how tremendously powerful a few simple words of encouragement can be when offered at the right time. As a coach you have the opportunity to be that person who makes a difference in a child's life. What type of difference, is up to you.

What if for all the time and effort you devote to the training, instruction, and preparation of your team, they never succeed in winning a game or even scoring a goal? Have you failed? The simple answer is NO. The true success of the program is measured not in the result of the contest on the field, but in the challenge against the myriad of childhood health problems lessened or defeated just by participating.

You have a tremendous responsibility and a unique opportunity to teach your players about teamwork, sportsmanship, obligation, perseverance, and pride. Never fail to recognize just what this program is cultivating. No matter how great a coach you are or how much you want them to, your players may not become the next US Olympic Soccer Team. However, somewhere this year, hidden on one of the thousands of teams in the AYSO is the woman who will find a cure for cancer, the first man to set foot on Mars, and the future President of the United States. Assume that team is yours.

So, why are you coaching? Is it for the big win? Or is it for what each of your players will take with them at the end of their season that will foster a generation of healthy, responsible, confident youth?

# 4 Sponsorships

# 4.1 Team Sponsors

Region 91 and the American Youth Soccer Organization (AYSO) is a non-profit organization that was founded in 1964 to promote fitness, good sportsmanship, and self-esteem in kids through their participation in soccer. All across the country, thousands of kids ages 4 to 19 years old play AYSO soccer. Here in Lancaster there are on average about 800 players. While coaches, referees, and board members in the AYSO program are unpaid volunteers, player registration fees do not cover all expenses. We keep those player fees as low as possible so more kids can play and therefore we rely on the generosity of local sponsors to help make that possible.

# <u>Each Region 91 team is encouraged to provide, at a minimum, one team sponsor for the regular core program.</u>

Your team contributions will help defray general operating expenses such as uniforms, balls, goals, nets, other equipment, field use and lighting, player insurance, team trophies and awards, training fees for our volunteers. Additionally, your team's sponsorship helps allow us to offer scholarships to help children be able to play soccer with us when they might not otherwise be able to.

For each team sponsor your team brings to Region 91, your team will get to keep 100% of the sponsorship funds to use toward team parties and/or team banner purchases.

See Appendix III for Sponsor details.

During the regular core season, look for special promotional programs to encourage teams to bring sponsors to Region 91.

Help us keep in the spirit of AYSO and promote a Fun, Fair and Safe environment for our players in our local community.

# 4.2 Fundraising

Your team fundraising contributions will help defray general operating expenses such as uniforms, balls, goals, nets, other equipment, field use and lighting, player insurance, team trophies and awards, training fees for our volunteers. Additionally, your team fundraising helps allow us to offer scholarships to help children be able to play soccer with us when they might not otherwise be able to.

# **5 TEAM SELECTION**

It is the intent of the team selection process to produce teams, which are balanced according to player ratings, ages, and years of experience. The following procedure will provide a fair initial distribution within the subjective ratings of the players.

The Coaches' meeting typically takes place in July. Competitive teams are balanced with respect to age and skill. Players are randomly assigned to teams, with the system taking numerous factors into consideration. Balanced teams provide a fun and fair environment for all players. As such, Region 91 is unable to accommodate requests for specific coaches, teammates, or practice days and times as these requests throw off team balancing efforts.

### 5.1 Divisions U5 Jamboree

Division U5 is for introduction of soccer skills and concepts and not for competitive purposes. The Jamboree One-With-One format is the preferred program approach for U5 (region discretion by season).

### 5.2 Divisions U6 and U8

Divisions U6 and U8 players are assigned to teams by eAYSO, with player placement considerations as follows: (1) that the coaches' child(ren) will be placed on his/her team; (2) that special requests to have children playing together or playing for a particular coach are honored only in these divisions; and (3) an attempt is made to even out the ratio of new-to-returning and younger-to-older players per team.

# 5.3 Divisions U10 through U19

Division U19, U16, U14, U12 and U10 are computer drafted through eAYSO. Criteria such as previous year player ratings, years of experience and age are all used by the computer to help with balancing teams. These divisions are computer drafted in order to provide an unbiased placement of players. The only player placement considerations are: (1) That the coaches' child(ren) will be placed on his/her team; and (2) that returning All-Star players will be as evenly dispersed as possible; and (3) an attempt is made to even out the ratio of new-to-returning and younger-to-older players per team.

# 5.4 Player Ratings

The single most important step in achieving team balance in competitive divisions is to make sure that the Coach Administrator has the most accurate ratings available for the players in each of these divisions. Therefore, at the end of each season you, as a coach, must attend the Player Evaluation meeting and turn in ratings (in the prescribed manner on the prescribed form) to the Coach Administrator. Your team will be ineligible to participate in Region playoffs if you (or a representative) do not attend the Player Evaluation meeting and submit player rating forms for each of your players.

Prior to the team draft meeting, the Registrar will:

- 1. Input values provided from evaluation forms from the prior year's evaluation meetings, as well as from the current year's new player registrations, into eAYSO for use in the team selection process.
- 2. Input each player's registration information, including information about siblings on the same team, placing the Coach's child with the coach, etc.

# 5.5 Special Requests

Special requests for players or coaches will only be honored in the competitive divisions (Div. U10 and older) on a case by case basis under exceptional circumstances. If the team selection satisfies special requests it is incidental. Special requests not to have a specific player or coach must be submitted in writing to the Coach Administrator prior to teams being formed. These requests must state a specific reason/cause for the request. The Regional Commissioner and the Regional Coach Administrator will review these requests and will determine a course of action. As cause may be sensitive, open discussion will not be held. If the decision is made to honor the request, the player will be traded with an equally rated player.

# 5.6 Player Trades

Coaches are not allowed to trade players amongst themselves under any circumstances, either during the coach meeting or thereafter. If a player must be moved from one team to another (for example, in the event of a schedule conflict with the original coach's selected training session time, or if there is another good reason for players from two teams to be exchanged) the movement of the player(s) must be carried out by the Registrar, when approved by the Coach Administrator and Regional Commissioner.

# 5.7 Children of Coaches & Assistant Coaches

Coach's children are guaranteed to be placed on the regular-season team that they are coaching.

If a coach is not coaching his/her own child, that coach may appoint one player as "their child" and have that player placed on their team. This can only be done with the permission of that player's parent(s).

If a coach has a particular assistant coach that they'd like to work with, the assistant's child is guaranteed to be placed on that team.

# **6 FINAL TEAM ROSTER**

After the teams have been formed, each coach will be presented with a printed team roster and the corresponding player registration forms. All information needed is on the player registration form. These will be handed out at the Coaches' meeting. The Regional Commissioner, Assistant Regional Commissioner, Regional Coach Administrator, or Assistant Coach Administrator may inspect the rosters at any time.

Any Board Member may complete a spot check, at any time your team is gathered, to ensure that you have your roster and player registration forms in your possession. All player forms must have a wet signature from the parent (no black ink for signatures) or an e-signature.

# 6.1 Changes to Final Team Rosters

Requests for transfer of players must be made to the Coach Administrator. Transfer of players may only be made with the approvals of the following parties:

- Coach Administrator and Regional Commissioner
- Coaches of both teams involved
- The parent(s) of each player involved

# 6.2 Player Transfers

Players may transfer to another team only under special circumstances. The process to do this is as follows:

- 1. A request must be made by the parents, in writing, stating the reason for the transfer.
- 2. The Coach Administrator will verify the validity of the request.
- 3. The Coach Administrator will contact both coaches for their approval.
- 4. Region Commissioner reviews and gives approval/disapproval of move.
  - If steps 1, 2 or 3 are not approved, the player will not move.
- 5. If all teams are full, unless there is another player attempting to move to the team where this player is moving from, the move will not be granted. No player will be forced to move to another team.

# 6.3 Deletions to Final Team Roster

When a player decides not to play AYSO, it is the coach's responsibility to inform the parents they must officially withdraw the player from AYSO so the team may replace the player, and to notify the Division Coordinator.

<u>Until the player's parent has submitted a withdrawal, or refund form as required, the player will remain on the team roster as a valid player. The team may not be able to receive a replacement player until the player is officially removed.</u>

The Division Coordinator, in consultation with the Coach Administrator and the Registrar will then assign a replacement player, if one exists, from the waiting list.

NOTE: It is not the coach's responsibility to handle the refund process. It is the parent's responsibility to formally request a refund (Refund Request forms are available through the Region and on the region's website) and to return any equipment issued (jersey, shorts, socks) prior to receiving their refund.

# 6.4 Waiting List

The Registrar will maintain a waiting list of late registrations. This list is to include:

- Player name
- Date of Entry
- Date of Birth
- Rating
- Returning or New Player

This list will be used to replace players who decide not to play AYSO this season, and to fill out team rosters so that each team has an equal number of players. After team selection has occurred, the Registrar will give appropriate priority to the rating of the player being replaced rather than the order of receipt of registrations when filling positions from the waiting list. The Registrar will make the best effort possible to achieve and maintain team balance.

# 6.5 Player Registration after Team Selection

Regular registration ends after the Coaches Meeting in August. Waiting lists are established for each Division from which openings will be filled. Players may not participate in AYSO activities (training sessions or games) until online registration is completed at <a href="https://www.eayso.org/">https://www.eayso.org/</a> and filed with the Regional Registrar and fees paid to the Region Treasurer. The assigned coach will contact the wait-listed player's family and inform them of the team's training session and game schedule.

Failure to follow the registration guidelines may result in team penalties (e.g. Forfeiture of team wins and dismissal of coach from team with the non-registered player).

#### 6.6 Team Names/Colors

All team names will be derived by the Division themes which are selected by the Division Coordinators and Team colors will be assigned, not chosen.

- 1. Team names shall bear no resemblance to any religion.
- 2. Abbreviations or initials may not be used, as these might be construed to have hidden meanings inappropriate for youth sports.
- 3. Team names may be used by only one team per season. No duplicate names between divisions or genders.
- 4. Team names are set from upper divisions (Divisions U19 & U16) to lower division (U14 through U5).

# 6.7 Non-Registered Players & Volunteers

<u>All players on your team MUST be registered with AYSO</u>. A player that is not registered may not participate with your team as they will not be properly covered by the AYSO supplemental liability insurance and you will not have an Emergency Medical Authorization form for them.

Likewise, your <u>parent volunteers MUST be registered and MUST take the Safe Haven Certification Course and the Concussion Awareness course prior to assisting with your team</u>. In Region 91, all Safe Haven Certifications will be within a 2-year period. If a coach is over the 2-year date they will be required to re-take the Coach Safe Haven course. For Safe Haven certification, the coach may utilize the eAYSO on-line Safe Have for Coaches.

<u>Everyone that steps onto the field with your team becomes a volunteer – MAKE SURE THEY ARE REGISTERED AND SAFE HAVEN CERTIFIED BEFORE YOU ALLOW THEM TO HELP.</u>
Your Division Coordinator or Coach Administrator can help you with ensure everyone who wants to help is properly certified.

# 7 DIVISION ORGANIZATION

Non-competitive and Competitive AYSO Divisions are formed according to age and gender. Players may join AYSO as early as the age of 4.5 years old to play in the current season. The age cutoff date is July 31.

Division	<b>Ball Size</b>	Length of Game
Under-5*	3	10 minute halves
Under-6*	3	15 minute halves
Under-8	3	20 minute halves
Under-10	4	25 minute halves
Under-12	4	30 minute halves
Under-14	5	35 minute halves
Under-16	5	30-40 minute halves
Under-19	5	30-45 minute halves

Half-time periods shall be a minimum of five (5) and a maximum of ten (10) minutes as designated by the referee.

# 7.1 Small Sided Games

Region 91 recognizes and will participate in small-sided games in accordance with AYSO and in an effort to improve ball skills and encourage players to get "more touches on the ball."

Division	Players on Field	Goal Keeper
Under-5/6	3	No
Under-8	4	No
Under-10	5 - 7	Yes
Under-12	7 - 9	Yes
Under-14	7 -11	Yes
Under-16	7 -11	Yes
Under-19	7 -11	Yes

### 7.2 U-5 Jamboree

Jamboree is the combination of two different formats that, put together, will provide the best possible introduction to soccer for our youngest players. Jamboree means that teams are formed on a weekly basis depending on how many players attend a given session. One-With-One refers to the concept that each player will have a parent (or other adult) working with them on the field. A Master Coach will lead each session and introduce game activity. Each Jamboree session will end with a 20 minute short-sided game (3v3) players selected randomly for teams each week.

<sup>\*</sup> Region 91 may combine Divisions U5/U6 in order to support the number of players in these divisions. If these divisions are combined, the game length will be modified to 15 min halves to accommodate both age groups. Detailed rules for these divisions are covered in the U5/U6 Supplement.

# 7.3 U-6

U6 games are non-competitive small-sided (3v3) and reduced field games. Although both teams may know the outcome of a particular match, no scores are recorded and standings are not maintained, and game cards are not used. There is no division champion. Every player receives an award at the season's end.

These divisions are clearly devoted to instruction and discovery (for coaches as well as players). To promote growth and development of the player, at no time will a single player remain in the same position during the course of a match. All players will be rotated to a different position on the field of play at every substitution period.

Equally important, these divisions should be devoted to enthusiasm, confidence, and fitness. All teams must have a maximum of three players on the field. There is no Goalkeeper in these divisions. All players rotate in and out in 5 minute increments. The three players on the field come off the field and the three that were off come on. For exact rules for these divisions, please refer to the U5/U6 Supplement or contact the Division Coordinator.

### 7.4 U-8

U-8 games are <u>non-competitive</u> small-sided (4v4) and reduced field size games. Although both teams may know the outcome of a particular match, no scores are recorded and standings are not maintained. There is no division champion. Every player receives an award at the season's end.

These divisions are clearly devoted to instruction and discovery (for coaches as well as players). To promote growth and development of the player, at no time will a single player remain in the same position during the course of a match.

Equally important, these divisions should be devoted to enthusiasm, confidence, and fitness. All teams will have a maximum of four players on the field. Prior to planning your lineup and training, verify with the Division Coordinator or Coach Administrator. All players must play no less than three quarters per game. For exact rules for division U-8, please refer to the U8 Supplement or contact the Division Coordinator.

### 7.5 U-10

Matches are played in a small-sided (7v7) format on a slightly smaller field. A U10 team must have no less than five and no more than seven on the field to participate in a match. Match scores will be recorded and division standings will be kept. Although this begins to add a further element of competition, please understand that this division is still devoted to instruction and discovery of the sport.

### 7.6 U-12

Matches are played in a small-sided (9v9) format on a regular size field. Region 91 recognizes and will participate in small-sided games in accordance with AYSO and in an effort to improve

ball skills and encourage children to get "more touches on the ball." A U12 team must have no less than seven and no more than nine on the field to participate in a match.

### 7.7 U-14

U14 and older use full-sided 11v11 formats and offer the opportunity for kids to play a more competitive soccer. A U14 team must have no less than seven players and not more than eleven on the field in order to participate in the match. Guidelines are as specified in IFAB Laws of the Game printed for the American Youth Soccer Organization.

### 7.8 U16 and U19

Division U16 and U19 play is governed by the Area D staff. There will be play within our neighboring regions, with some games at home and others away. Some travel is required. Guidelines are as specified in IFAB Laws of the Game printed for the American Youth Soccer Organization.

### 7.9 Schedule Coordinator

The Schedule Coordinator determines season game day schedules in consultation with the Regional Commissioner and the Coach Administrator. The main factor influencing scheduling is the number of teams in a division. Special schedules will not be developed for those coaching more than one team after the schedule has been officially released – you will need to acquire an assistant coach to help with your duties.

#### 7.10 Division Coordinator

Each Division has a Division Coordinator. The responsibilities of the Division Coordinator include recruiting coaches, overseeing the team formation process, and conveying information to coaches from the Regional Commissioner or the Coach Administrator, and other administrative tasks. You should consult your Division Coordinator Director or Coach Administrator with concerns about team formation, player withdrawals, equipment, or other questions that may arise during the season.

Division Coordinators are also expected to perform the following functions:

- Observe games played in their Division
- Observe at least one practice for each team in their Division
- Ensure the coaches in their Division are properly certified
- Ensure the coaches in their Division have turned in all of the required forms
- Make themselves available to assist with each of their Division's team's parent meetings

# 8 Coach Certification and Skills Development

Coach Training includes orientation by the Regional Coach Administrator and successful completion of division-appropriate AYSO certification courses. Coach certification requires that each Coach and Assistant Coach successfully complete an AYSO Safe Haven for Coaches Course for child and volunteer protection, the CDC Concussion Awareness Training as well as any required AYSO (division appropriate) Coaching Courses.

All coaches MUST have attended the SAFE HAVEN FOR COACHES COURSE prior to first practice, as well as a division-appropriate AYSO certified Coach Training course.

# 8.1 Player Development

Player skills and development is achieved through trained and certified coaches. It is imperative that every coach be certified to the level in which they are coaching.

# 8.2 Coach Development

Region 91, as well as neighboring regions, Area, Section, and AYSO National offer coaching courses. The Division Coordinators and Coach Administrator can provide information of the level, location, date and time of each of the clinics as they become available. You can also perform a search for these clinics by going to one of the following: Region 91 web site, <a href="https://www.eayso.org/">https://www.eayso.org/</a> or <a href="https://www.aysotraining.org">https://www.aysotraining.org</a>. These clinics are progressive in nature and will last from two hours (for some programs) to as many as 18 hours over the course of a weekend or over a series of evenings for the more advance programs.

An on-line coach course is an easy way to take the academic portion of the coach certification but is not sufficient in itself for certification as it does not provide the required field work; therefore, a coach taking an on-line course will not be considered fully certified until they have physically attended one of the training classes.

#### 8.2.1 Safe Haven Certification

In Region 91, all Safe Haven Certifications **will be** within a 2-year period. If a coach is over the 2-year date they will be required to re-take the Coach Safe Haven course. For Safe Haven certification, the coach may utilize the <a href="https://www.aysotraining.org">https://www.aysotraining.org</a> online new Safe Haven for **all** Volunteers.

### 8.2.2 U-6, U-8 and U-10 Coach Courses

These are typically 1-day courses that include <u>classroom and field time</u>. They give our first-time coaches (and experienced coaches) some basic training about what they should expect out of soccer players at each of these age levels.

**NOTE:** An on-line coach course is not sufficient in itself for certification as it does not provide the required field work; therefore, a coach will not be considered fully certified until they attend one of these training classes.

# 8.2.3 Youth (U-12) Coach Course

This is an 8-hour course for coaches in U-12 that are transitioning from short-sided games to a full 11 a side game. In addition to the philosophy and theory topics, the majority of time is spent on the field showing the new coaches how to teach the basic skills, how to conduct a training session, how to prepare for the game, how to start the game and other topics such as required equipment and field markings. *This course is a prerequisite for the Intermediate, Advanced and National Coach Courses.* 

#### 8.2.4 Intermediate Coach Course

This is a 15-hour course (Usually Fri, Sat, Sun), that is targeted at division U-14 coaches who have one to three years of coaching experience. This course is not advisable for new coaches as it covers more advanced topics such as principles of play and offensive/defensive methods. These tend to be overwhelming to new coaches. *This course is a prerequisite for the Advanced and National Coach Courses*.

#### 8.2.5 Advanced Coach Course

This is an 18-hour course for divisions U16 and U19 coaches with three to five years' experience. It builds on the individual skills taught in the Youth course and the group plays taught in the Intermediate course. It focuses on the coaching techniques of observation and evaluation, tactical decision-making, and dealing with the older age player. It utilizes small group play to create match pressure situations to work on, advanced topics like combination passing, functional training, and set plays. *This course is a prerequisite for the National Instructor Course.* 

#### 8.2.6 National Coach Course

As part of the commitment to improve the overall coaching in AYSO - AYSO National will be conducting courses to identify and develop instructors for all of the Coaching courses. If you are interested or can identify coaches in your division who should attend, please follow up with the Regional Coach Administrator.

# 9 COACHES AND ASSISTANT COACHES

The proper relationship between a coach and his or her players is absolutely essential for implementing the AYSO philosophy. Achieving the necessary balance is not easy. The tasks required of a coach are many. Coaches must attend age-appropriate training and coaches meetings, meet and organize the team schedule, conduct training sessions, obtain uniforms and complete all the necessary paperwork and oversee game play. For some coaches, getting used to the idea that winning games is not the most important goal of coaching in AYSO runs counter to a lifetime emphasis on winning in sports. Parents who do not understand the AYSO philosophy may add to the difficulty by demanding a winning team at any costs.

### 9.1 Duties of Coaches and Officials

It shall be the duty of each coach and official to:

- Be certified at the appropriate Division level.
- Be Safe Haven Certified within 2 years of the current season.
- Complete the CDC Concussion Awareness Training
- Conduct oneself in a manner becoming a member of AYSO.
- Stress clean competition, fair play and good sportsmanship at all times.
- Train and coach their team to the best of their ability.
- Know and uphold the guidelines of Region 91 and AYSO.
- Participate in positive coaching that encourages players during AYSO games. Negative comments about other players, coaches or officials will not be tolerated.
- Coaches and referees may not smoke or use any tobacco product or allow any parents or spectators to do so on the LNSC Fields, buildings, or in front of the team at games or training sessions.

### 9.2 Coach Selection

All Coaches must apply annually for the position and be approved by the Regional Coach Administrator. Each applicant must be trained and certified in the proper division as an AYSO Coach and must complete Coach Safe Haven Certification to be eligible. Some applicants may have extensive experience as a player and/or a non-AYSO coach and some may be certified with other organizations. *Experience or certification as a coach by any other organization WILL NOT be accepted as a substitute for AYSO training or certification*.

The Coach Selection Committee is comprised of regional board members. Prospective coaches and assistant coaches may apply at player registrations, by emailing the Coach Administrator, or by emailing the Region 91 hotline. Also, other coaches, Division Coordinators, or the Coach Administrator may recommend prospective coaches and assistant coaches.

The Region Coach Administrator will select Coaches and Assistant Coaches by considering all available information about coaching candidates, including but not limited to the following:

- Commitment to and support of the AYSO philosophy
- Team Management skills

- Good Sportsmanship
- Fulfillment of regional program requirements
- Spirit of cooperation with and support of other volunteers
- Coaching experience
- Effectiveness in communication with players
- Level of AYSO and/or equivalent training and certification
- Willingness to obtain additional coach training and certification

The Region Coach Administrator also may consider other pertinent factors. For example: the willingness of candidates to continue to coach and encourage tournament teams. In addition, minimum-training requirements may be imposed for certain positions.

# 9.3 Rosters, waivers and other paperwork

Upon completion of the team selection process, you will be given the registration forms for each of the players assigned to your team. Review each of these forms for complete information, potential health problems, or other items of necessary interest. Each form must be signed by a parent in other than black ink or have a valid e-signature. **These forms include medical release information and must be in your possession at all team events, at all times.** The signed form allows you to obtain emergency medical treatment for an injured player in the parents' absence. Keep the forms together. Use these forms to make a roster to distribute to the players' parents at the first parent meeting.

# 9.4 Initial Contact with the Players

After the Coaches Meeting, each coach must call his or her players. This call is to:

- 1. Confirm that the player intends to participate this season;
- 2. Inform when and where the team will meet and hold training sessions;
- 3. Ensure that players and parents are aware of the basic equipment requirements (shoes, soccer ball and shin guards); and
- 4. To provide the player's family with your telephone number. Encourage the player to call if they cannot attend a training session or game. However, be aware it is a violation of AYSO National guidelines to punish a child or lessen a player's playing time for their inability to attend a scheduled event.

#### 9.5 Parent Volunteers

As a coach of a team of players, you will find that time is precious and that you would prefer to spend your commitment on the field with the players. To help you achieve this goal you will want to solicit assistance from your team parents. The types of volunteers you will need are:

- 1. Assistant Coach(s);
- 2. A Team Parent (check team mailbox weekly confirm snack schedule -team communications); and

3. Referees (See Team Referee Responsibilities for your division). Your workload will be lightened if you can get all of your team volunteers before the start of the season. Coaches will be supplied with forms and other aids to ensure full participation of your team's parents.

# 9.6 Player Evaluations

It is the <u>responsibility of each coach</u> to fill out the appropriate player ratings form near the end of the season. Player ratings are extremely important, as they are the basis for the next year's team selection and balancing process.

Try to judge each player according to the age, value to the team, playing ability, attitude, fitness and endurance, encouragement of teammates, and sportsmanship. Total points available will vary between divisions. Players earning the highest amount of points available or the least amount of points available are very rare. Players that are rated high enough to be considered the "upper echelon" of the division should be "impact players" on your team – this means that your team's ability to win would be severely hindered without that player. If this is not the case, you may want to consider lowering that player's score.

If you have questions about how to rate players, please discuss the process with your Division Coordinator or with the Coach Administrator. The Coach Administrator will provide the appropriate forms and instructions near the end of the season. These must be turned in at the Player Evaluation meeting to continue on to league playoffs.

### 9.7 Team Folders and Coach Mailboxes

There will be a coach's box set up at the AYSO Information tent area each Saturday of the Season. There will be a folder for each team, by team number, that will have items for you to pick up. There are also folders for administrators and officials. Please have your team parent or team manager pick up the contents of your folder before your game on Saturdays. This is where you will get your regional newsletters and other important information that you will need to pass along to players and parents.

# 10 SAFETY GUIDELINES FOR AYSO COACHES

Many things need to happen before game day for a soccer season to proceed. Registrations must be held, volunteers must be contacted and trained, coaches have to get their teams together and hold training sessions. Volunteers do all of these things. If parents do not volunteer, there is no AYSO.

# 10.1 Prior to First Game or Training Session

Coaches should do the following to prepare for the first game or practice:

- 1. Review each of your player registration forms and ensure that the medical release on each form has been completed (photocopies must have an original parent signature in blue or red ink). If not, have it completed at your parents' meeting or prior to the first training session. The registration forms serve three purposes:
  - a. Registration with National AYSO
  - b. Activation of Insurance Coverage
  - c. Medical Treatment Release
- 2. Establish if any of your players has a medical condition (e.g., asthma, allergic condition) that may impact his or her play. Discuss with the parent or guardian what preventive steps you can take, and what to do if this condition should become apparent during a training session or game. Any players with medical conditions noted should have a doctor's release on file with the region Regional Board members discussed the conditions of play with the parents at the time of registration. It is your responsibility to also notify the Region if you have any knowledge of a medical condition that may affect the child is not noted on their registration form.
- 3. Determine what parents on your team, if any have mobile telephones. Ask them to bring their telephone to training sessions and games. In the event of an emergency, these may be used to contact the appropriate authorities to tend to an injured player. You must also immediately notify a Regional Board Member.

# 10.2 At All Team Gatherings

At all team gatherings (e.g. games, training sessions, scrimmages, meetings, parties) the coach is to check the playing/training session area to identify and remedy any unsafe conditions (i.e. protruding sprinkler heads, holes, broken glass, etc.) and have the following in their possession:

- 1. Registration form for each player on the team (Medical Release) <u>Board members will be performing spot-checks for registration forms (a.k.a. white forms) throughout the season.</u>

  Should any board member ask you for these forms you must provide them immediately! If you cannot produce the forms, the event (training session, game, etc.) will be immediately terminated and parents must be contacted to retrieve their children.
- 2. Ice packs or plastic bags that can be filled with ice for application to an injury.
- 3. A First Aid kit (provided by the region); or at least an ace wrap, tape, gauze pads, antibiotic ointment, and Band-Aids.

# **10.3** Injury Prevention

Why do most injuries occur in youth sports today?

- Improper techniques
- Under or over-conditioning
- Collision/contact with other players
- Insufficient warm-up and cool down
- Poor eating habits

Our goal in AYSO is injury PREVENTION. To accomplish this:

- Make sure your players wear all required safety gear at every game and training session.
- Be sure to warm up your team before stretching and practicing, and cool down your players at the end of training session.
- DO NOT encourage players to play through pain. If the child has a need to see a doctor, respect the doctor's order for recovery and obtain a signed doctor's release prior to letting the player train or play again.
- Make sure first aid is available at all games and training sessions.

**Warm-Ups** increase heat throughout the body and reduce the risk of tearing or straining muscles by increasing their suppleness. This should consist of:

- A short 2-3 minute jog, skip, march, or combination before stretching
- Stretching increases flexibility and freedom of movement, reduces muscle tension, and reduces the risk of muscle and tendon injuries. Dynamic Stretching seems to be the way of the future and provides better results than Static Stretching.

**Cool Downs** remove muscle waste products, reduce muscle soreness and stiffness and enable the player to compete again at the same level within a short period of time.

- Short 2-3 Minute jog or brisk walk
- 5-10 minutes of Dynamic Stretching

Always be alert and aware of the health and safety of your team players. Before, during and after the game it is very important to keep fluid levels up to prevent dehydration. Remember that by the time you feel thirsty, you are already well on the road to dehydration. Stress drinking plenty of water or sports drinks before, during, and after games.

# 10.4 In The Event of Injury

- 1. Remind players injured during a game or training session to remain on the field until a coach or referee assists them.
- 2. Do not play injured or limping players.
- 3. Fractures are common and painful injuries players with fractures need to be kept out of games until released by their physician.

- 4. Any player that has lost consciousness; appears to be seriously injured; or who may have suffered possible spinal cord injury should be left still and not moved (even if the player is on the field). **DO NOT MOVE THE PLAYER!!!**
- 5. If the player requires medical attention and emergency crews are contacted, you will be asked to provide the Player Registration form, which is REQUIRED to be in your possession at all times as a coach.
- 6. In the event a player is injured, you have the responsibility of reporting the injury to the Region Safety Director and the Regional Commissioner as soon as possible (no later than 12 hours after the injury, No Exceptions!) Reporting injuries should be done in person or by calling the Safety Director. All player injuries requiring a doctor visit must be cleared and/or released by their doctor before returning to fully participate without restrictions in the AYSO program. A Participation Release Form must be signed by the player's doctor and parent, and then returned to the Safety Director to sign and date before the player can return to the AYSO program.
- 7. Obtain an AYSO Soccer Accident Insurance (SAI) Claim form from your Regional Safety Director or Commissioner and provide the form to the player's parent(s) or guardian(s). Have the parent or guardian complete the portion of the claim form marked "To be completed by claimant" and "Statement of Insurance." The "Eligibility Verification" section must have signatures from two authorized AYSO officials, the Regional Safety Director and the Regional Commissioner. Point out to the parents that it is their responsibility to make a copy for their own records and to mail the claim form to American National Life Insurance Co. of Texas within 90 days of the date of injury. Claim forms that are not completely filled out cannot be processed. AYSO SAI will pay only those expenses that are not covered by the player's regular insurance up to a \$50,000 maximum for medical expenses. Thus, the player must first submit a claim to the insurance company that provides coverage for their medical expenses with any remaining balances submitted to the AYSO plan. There is a \$200.00 deductible.
- 8. OBTAIN ANY ADDITIONAL FORMS FROM THE SAFETY DIRECTOR.

# 11 FACILITIES, EQUIPMENT AND TRAINING SESSIONS

Regular season games are played at the Lancaster National Soccer Center, primarily on the East side of 30th Street East, or as prescribed by city officials. Goals and nets are provided for each of the fields. Goals and nets for U-5, U6, and U8 will be assembled and taken down each Saturday by Region staff and team volunteers. Fields are lined by city personnel. Training session fields will be assigned based upon the space allotted by the city. Training session Field Request will come via e-mail. The Training Session Field Request form is where the coaches state their preferences with respect to time and day(s) of week that the coaches would like to have their training sessions. *Training sessions are never allowed on Fridays*, as this is a day that the city uses for major field maintenance. The field scheduler will make every attempt to reconcile all of the requests. However, due to the number of teams that must be accommodated, first choices may not always be provided. It is important to observe your assigned training session time and location so as to avoid conflict with other coaches and other leagues. In most cases there will be a team preceding and following your team at the training session field location. Because of this it is important that training sessions start and end promptly at the scheduled times.

# ONCE YOUR TRAINING SESSION FIELD ASSIGNMENT IS ISSUED YOU MUST NOT TRAIN ON A FIELD OR AT A TIME OTHER THAN THAT WHICH HAS BEEN ASSIGNED.

To ensure that all players get the most out of their training session time, it is strongly recommended that each child bring an appropriately sized ball for their age group. <u>All players must wear shin guards at all training sessions and games.</u> Goalkeepers may wish to provide their own gloves or padded clothing.

Soccer is played in all types of weather conditions. The Regional Commissioner, Assistant Regional Commissioner, Safety Director, Coach Administrator and the Referee Administrator have the authority to postpone or cancel games due to bad weather or unsafe playing conditions.

Unless previously notified, all teams must appear at the game field at the scheduled time. A light to medium rain is not a cause for cancellation, but lightning within a reasonable area is. Assume that your game will be played. Once game time arrives, the assigned referee has the responsibility for determining unsafe playing conditions. Coaches are to use their discretion in regard to practicing in questionable weather conditions. In some instances, the Parks and Recreation will determine whether or not to allow training sessions or games.

# 11.1 Training session location and schedule

Training session fields are not assigned until July and may be changed if necessary. However, you may contact your players and arrange to hold voluntary training sessions prior to receiving your formal training session field assignment. Voluntary training sessions MAY NOT begin prior to the scheduled training session start date. Some families will be on vacation or simply have other summer time activities planned. Do not make players and parents feel obliged to hold training sessions prior to the assignment of training session fields. The region recommends that teams conduct only two formal training sessions each week. Field permits and schedules are

based on this assumption. All teams in Divisions U8 and higher are provided with 1-hour training session slots on the field assigned to them. U6 teams are provided with 30-minute training session slots. If a coach wishes to practice longer than one hour, the coach and team will need to use the open space adjacent to a field.

# 11.2 Equipment

You will be given a soccer ball and other equipment provided by AYSO by your Division Coordinator. Other suggested equipment you may wish to have includes a clipboard, a whistle, a permanent marking pen, a ball pump (and extra needles), flags, cones and an extra pair of shin guards.

# 12 THE GAME

### 12.1 Timeliness

All players must show up with adequate time to be ready for the game. Coaches will instruct as to how early a player should show up.

# 12.2 Player Equipment

Uniforms are issued to every player and consist of a jersey, shorts and socks. These uniforms are the property of AYSO Region 91 and remain the property of Region 91 until the end of the season. Each player is expected to wear their issued uniform. Failure to wear the proper uniform could keep a player from playing a match. All players on a team must wear the same style and color shorts. All players must wear shin guards of proper size for protection when practicing and during the game. A player without shin guards will not be permitted to participate. Shin guards must be manufactured with the sole function as protection for the shin.

Regulation soccer shoes, gym shoes, or sneakers (with or without cleats) are permissible subject to the referee's approval regarding their safety.

**Note:** It is a misconception that toe cleats and metal cleats are not allowed in soccer. This is not true. Both toe cleats and metal cleats are allowable, as long as *in the opinion of the referee they are safe for all players*. Keep in mind that metal cleats can wear down over time and can develop sharp edges or burrs, which can make them unsafe for play.

Sliding pants/bicycle shorts may be worn, provided they are of matching color to the shorts and do not extend below the knee.

Boxer shorts or cutoffs may not be worn under playing shorts if they are visible (extend) beyond the playing shorts.

Under clothing, such as sweat shirts and pants may be worn for inclement weather or for protective reasons and will conform to the following rules:

- 1. Will be worn under the uniform.
- 2. Be of a similar color to the uniform.
- 3. Must be of the same color or shade for the whole team.
- 4. Sweat pants must be worn under socks/over shorts and if one player wears sweat pants any others that chose to must conform to 1, 2, and 3 above.

In accordance with IFAB Laws, metal braces, studs, earrings, hair ornaments and any other hard or metal jewelry or other objects are not allowed. **No exceptions**.

No hard-brimmed caps or bandannas are allowed. In the case of cold or inclement weather, soft, knit headwear will be allowed.

No face or hair painting or other body decorations of any kind are allowed, except that soft hair ribbons, rubber bands, or "scrunches" for hair grooming are allowed and may be colored.

Goalkeepers are allowed different clothing as specified in AYSO and IFAB Laws of the Game. Goalkeeper jerseys shall not have advertisements for alcohol, cigarettes, etc., nor should they have obscene, suggestive, insulting, or profane language or artwork on them.

Players are not allowed to have gum or other type substances in their mouths during the game. (Exceptions: mouth guards and wax for braces.)

Ball size as defined by AYSO:

Division	Ball Size
Under-5*	3
Under-6*	3
Under-8	3
Under-10	4
Under-12	4
Under-14	5
Under-16	5
Under-19	5

Balls must be properly inflated and may not have sharp edges or loose patches. Balls that are inflated by high powered air compressors will not be used until the air pressure is adjusted properly.

### 12.3 Check the Schedule

Make sure that you know your game time and side of the field you will occupy. Home team is listed is listed first on the game schedules. Home team is always North or West side of the field depending on direction of the field layout.

# 12.4 Come Prepared

Have your team on the field in plenty of time for good warm-ups and pre-game talks. Have your game card and lineup ready BEFORE you get to the fields. Know who your Captain and Assistant Captains will be for the game. Having all of this ready before you are at the fields will allow you to concentrate on your players. Games need to start on schedule!! Referees have the option to deduct time from the game if start time is delayed.

#### 12.5 Game Cards

Prior to Week 1 game day each coach will receive ten game cards provided by the Region to cover ten weeks of play. It is the coaches' responsibility to have a game card filled out prior to the game start. All players must be listed (first and last name) numerically. Any player absent must be listed accordingly. The referee maintains the game card once the match begins. At the conclusion of the match the coaches from both teams should examine and initial

their game cards, at which point the referee will be responsible for turning the cards into the scorekeeper/statistician box.

EGION	91AGE GROUPU10G	TEAM #	1	D	TE C	/17	
	AME Grasshoppers OPPOS		-	22 121			
	S NAME Jane Doe ASST.					NA/D	_
OACH:	S NAME Jaile Doe ASST.	COACH'S N	IAME _	Juai	ו טפ	IVVII	
All tea	m players must be listed in order by					11.000	
No.	PRINT PLAYERS NAME	Goals Scored		1	"Qtrs." Not Played 1 2 3 4		
2	Amber Sun C						
3	Misty Rain						
4	Sunny Breeze						
5	Tonya Tornado						
6	Amy McCloud C						
7	Stormy Smith						
8	Tammy Thunder						
9	Sandy Snow						
10	Susic Tsunami Absent						

**Example Lineup Card** 

# 12.6 Check-In

Before the referee calls for check-in, make sure that all of your players are "game ready."

# This means:

- 1. Everyone is wearing their uniform, shin guards, proper shoes and has tucked in their jerseys.
- 2. No players are wearing jewelry or watches of any kind.
- 3. No face paint or hair colors.
- 4. No casts or splints.
- 5. No hard clips or hair ties.

**Note:** Due to safety purposes, long spiked hair will be to the discretion of the referee.

# 12.7 The Game Ball

It is the responsibility of the coach of the HOME team to provide three game balls prior to the start of the match. The game balls must be in good shape, and the referee will inspect them for proper inflation, cuts and tears, and that they aren't deformed.

# 12.8 Set a Positive Tone for the Game

Get your team fired up by encouraging them to play hard, make their best effort and have fun! Remind everyone (including your parents and yourself) that this is a game and that games are supposed to be fun! Make sure everyone understands the importance of good sportsmanship!

Remember to employ Positive Coaching!! Take notes of fixes that need to be covered in your next training session.

# 12.9 Playing time

All players must play no less than three "quarters" in one game in accordance with AYSO National Guidelines. An exception is made to this rule for teams with over-sized rosters.

As stated by the Region 91 Equitable Play Rule, no player shall participate in a fourth consecutive quarter of play unless or until all other players from that team have already participated or are participating in their third quarter of play.

Players that are absent, tardy or disciplined by their parents will be credited as having played the quarters. Disciplined players must have a note from their parents to the head coach. This is so the region knows it's a parent's decision, not something from the coach.

# 12.10 Running Time - Substitutions

The game is described as having three parts: a first half, a half time, and a second half. Approximately midway through the first half and the second half of the game there are substitutions allowed (most people refer to these as quarter substitutions). During these substitution periods, the clock DOES NOT STOP. This is called running time. The clock starts at the beginning of each half and does not stop for substitutions. The clock will restart at half time and again at the beginning of the second half. Therefore, it is very important to have your game plan prepared in advance and circulate the players in/out of the field as quickly as possible.

# 12.11 Conduct of Coaches and Spectators

Referees will enforce the following rules concerning coaches and spectators:

- Sideline coaching is limited to two coaches from each team, and they shall be limited to a
  coaching area extending ten yards on either side of the halfway line (use the center circle as
  a guide).
- Coaches, players and spectators should also stay one to three yards off the touchline to allow the players sufficient space to play the ball near the line and to allow the Assistant Referee sufficient space to maneuver.

- Spectators may sit or stand on the sidelines to which their team is assigned. West for the
  home team, north when the field is east and west (home team is listed first). In no way may
  they stand closer than 3 yards from the sideline. Spectators may not sit or stand behind the
  goalkeeper or on the line where the goal is at. On the sidelines spectators must stay
  between the two penalty areas.
- Spectators are allowed to cheer by clapping and by using their voices. Noisemakers, clackers, air horns, etc. are not allowed for use in cheering as these items demonstrate poor sportsmanship.
- "Coaching" is the directing of players on the field.
- U-5 parents will be allowed on the field to assist their team during the soccer fest event. U-6 coaches will be allowed on the field to assist their team (one coach per team).
- U-8 and up may only occupy the coaching area on their team's side.
- Coaches and spectators may not enter the field during a game or during the quarter substitution break unless they have the referee's explicit permission.
- Spectators may not watch the game from goal area or from behind the goal lines.
- Negative comments or complaints about the referees and their handling of the match are not allowed.

# \*Coaches are responsible for the conduct of their team's spectators\*

As a coach, you have the ability to ask an unruly parent or spectator to leave the area. You may call upon Division Coordinator for additional assistance. Remember, if a Referee is unhappy with a spectator's actions you will receive the verbal caution (Yellow Card) or verbal sendoff (Red Card), not the spectator.

# 12.12 After the Game

Gather your team together at the end of each game. Give a cheer for the other team and then one for yourselves! Lead your team out to shake hands with the other team and to thank the referees. Enjoy the moment together! Let your team know that you are proud of them. Let them leave on an upbeat note. Your attitude is what the players and parents will remember as they leave the field. Make it a positive one!

Remember, at the conclusion of the match the coaches from both teams should examine and initial their game cards prior to the Referees turning them into the Game Card Box.

# 12.13 Animals – Region 91 Activities

NO animals of any kind are allowed at any REGION 91 AYSO activities. These activities include player training sessions, various clinics, or game day.

City Park Rules and Regulations regarding animals at the LNSC are superseded by the Region 91 Guidelines and Coaches Manual and will be strictly adhered to by all that are in attendance at an AYSO Region 91 activity.

AYSO and Region 91 have a responsibility to provide a SAFE and FUN environment for all volunteers, players and spectators. Due to the aggressive nature of some animals towards other

# Region 91 Coaches Manual

animals and non-family members, Region 91 will no longer allow any animals at any AYSO activity.

Individuals bringing animals to the LNSC during an AYSO activity will be asked to remove the animal from the field areas.

### 13 REFEREES AND RULES

<u>Always remember</u>: Referees are volunteers too. New volunteers are needed each year so that our Region can continue to train and develop skilled referees and thereby increase the overall quality of our program. As a coach choosing Team Referees, you should select reliable people who have some interest in soccer. Knowledge of the game is not a requirement, as training and supervision are provided. Regional Referee Courses will be conducted before and after the start of the season. The courses and are presented by the local AYSO Referee instructors. These courses provide instruction about the Laws of the Game, guidelines for their interpretation and enforcement, and instruction on the different methods of refereeing. New and experienced referees as well as coaches are welcome. It is important for a coach to understand the role of the referee.

### 13.1 Providing Volunteer Referees

U10, U12 and U14 Team Responsibility for Providing Volunteer Referees

### 13.1.1 Team Responsibility

Each team (U10 - U14) is expected to provide three (3) registered volunteers to act as referees and/or assistant referees during the course of the season. Teams must earn 25 volunteer points, 20 coming from refereeing. (2 points earned for each completed Referee assignment or 1 point earned for each Assistant Referee assignment.) Failing to referee for three successive weeks will result in a 2-point deduction each week, beginning in the third week and continuing until the crew begins refereeing again. Lost points can only be earned through refereeing. Teams in U10, U12, and U14 that do not meet this requirement will not be eligible for post-season play (league playoffs).

There will be NO swapping or sharing of referee points with other teams once a referee assigned them self to a team for volunteer points. The referee may NOT represent more than one team in a season.

The game card will be the official standing for teams represented, not the referee schedule. Due to no-shows and cancellations, the referee schedule cannot be used to award points.

For more information on the Point System, please see Chapter 14 Point Systems.

The Regional Referee Scheduler will provide information on how to schedule games for your team will to referee. Your referees will be able to sign up for games that they wish to officiate, based on their experience level.

You should not burden only one or two people with the job of refereeing in all of your required slots. You should try to get as many volunteers from your team as possible so that you will be covered in the event of a no-show.

U-5 and U-6 games will be refereed by the coaches or parents of the players on the field for the game being played. It is suggested that these referees be trained so that they understand the rules for the division.

U-8 teams will each provide 1 (one) "referee" to officiate every match. The referee can be a parent, relative or coach. In limited situations, referees will be provided by the Region.

A neutral, three-person team will referee U-10 games and above.

U16 and U19 referee scheduling will be handled by the Area staff and is not included in this program. (U16 & U19 teams will need to earn referee points by refereeing lower-division games on Saturdays, or by refereeing other Upper Division games on Tuesdays and Thursdays.)

### 13.1.2 Referee Responsibilities

Referee volunteers are required to have successfully completed a Basic Referee course, Safe Have, and Concussion Awareness.

Referees should arrive thirty minutes before the kickoff of the game they are to officiate to check in with the Region Referee Staff at the administration tents.

Referees are responsible for accurately recording the games they officiate on the back of game cards with the team information. If not, their team will not receive credit for the games refereed.

			H	eteree	Game F	Report		
Date9/	26/15	Tim	ne_ 9:	30	_ Field 2	0	_ Conditions	Warm
Home Team/	Colors	Tigers	S		Visiting Tear	m/Colors_Li	ons	
Halftime Sco	re 3-4	In F	avor Of	Lions	Final Score	5-4	_ Winning Team_	Tigers
Coaches: Spectators:	0	0	0				11405 //0	
	(0.1.1)							
Referee Nam	ie (Print):	Richard Lane				Phone/email:	U12G #3	
		Richa	ru Lar					
Referee Nam	e Print):	Richa Harol				Phone/email:	U10G Lady	bugs

**Lineup Card with Game Results** 

Teams will receive credit for officiating games other than pre-scheduled games provided that the information is accurately reflected on the back of the game card. Referees are solely responsible for this.

Reminder: The referee may NOT represent more than one team in a season.

### 13.2 Match Rules

All games played within Region 91 shall be played in accordance with IFAB Laws of the Game, and AYSO National Rules & Regulations.

No protests of games will be allowed <u>under any circumstances</u>. Decisions of the referee during the game are final.

### 13.2.1 Player Eligibility

Questions of player eligibility shall be brought to the attention of the Coach Administrator and the Regional Commissioner, not to the game referee. Playing of an ineligible player, whether intentional or accidental, will result in the forfeit of that game and suspension of both the coach and the player for the remainder of the season.

### 13.2.2 Equitable Play Rule

All Region 91 games will be played according to the IFAB Laws of the Game currently in effect, except as amended by the AYSO National Rules & Regulations. The referees will remind coaches of the "Everyone Plays" rule but enforcement will come from the Regional Board. Current National Rules & Regulations state, "all eligible team members in attendance at AYSO games must play at least half of the game, excluding overtime." As a region we pride ourselves in our strict adherence to the six tenants of AYSO. As such, and in the spirit of those tenants, we hold ourselves to an even higher standard. Therefore, the Region 91 enforces a modified "Equitable Play Rule" which states...

"During an individual match, no player shall participate in a fourth consecutive quarter of play unless or until all other players from that team have already participated or are participating in their third quarter of play."

The Statistician will notify the Coach Administrator if the equitable play rule is being neglected, at which point sanctions will be imposed upon coaches including but not limited to:

- Loss of one full point in team's regular or post season standings,
- Suspension of the coach for the following scheduled match,
- And/or in extreme cases, forfeiture of the match in question.

It shall be the responsibility of the Regional Coach Administrator or Regional Commissioner upon review to determine what sanction/s shall be imposed. Details of the Equitable Play Rule can be found on the region web site under coaching documents.

It is the coach's responsibility to ensure that the players receive sufficient playing time. If a player is injured during a game, the coach may substitute for that player. The injured player may

not return to the game until the beginning of the next quarter. Only the player who was injured (who started the quarter) is credited with a quarter's playing time. Alternately, the coach may elect to play short, thereby allowing the injured player to return to the game during the quarter in which the game was left. Prior to re-entering the field, the referee must recognize the injured player.

### 13.2.3 Player Attire

For the safety of the players and others, players may not wear watches, rings, necklaces, hard hair ornaments, bracelets (including string "friendship" bracelets), earrings, or other jewelry. "I just had my ears pierced" is not an acceptable excuse for wearing an earring. Jewelry or other offending objects may not be covered by tape. No casts are permitted, soft or otherwise. Soft knee braces are permitted, so long as no dangerous edges are showing.

### 13.3 Conduct

It cannot be overly stressed that AYSO programs are "for the kids". The entire AYSO program has been built upon this and other principles such as: <u>Everyone Plays, Good Sportsmanship, and Positive Coaching</u>. Above all, AYSO and Region 91 are here for everyone to have fun. Overzealous officials, coaches and parents are encouraged not to participate.

In the event a game is forfeit due to any reason below, the Region Executive Board will meet to determine if any further action is needed.

### 13.3.1 Coach Conduct

Coaches and Assistant Coaches who demonstrate poor conduct, lack of self-control or poor sportsmanship will be cautioned or be ejected, followed by a formal letter of reprimand. If a coach is ejected from the game, the coach must leave the vicinity of all playing fields immediately as directed by the referee. Additionally, coaches are responsible for the conduct of their spectators and parents. Coaches may be cautioned or ejected for not controlling inappropriate behavior by spectators or parents. If the behavior continues the referee is required to suspend or terminate the game. The game's outcome will then be determined by the executive board.

In the event a coach is sent-off by a referee, he/she will be suspended from next match and may receive a one-point deduction from the team's regular or post season standings.

### 13.3.2 Player Conduct

Any player receiving a sendoff before, during or after a game must leave the vicinity of all playing fields, and is not permitted to play in the next scheduled game that is played by his/her team. The player <u>must</u> be at the game in uniform but may not participate in <u>any</u> of the game day activities with the exception of cheering for their team. The player will not be eligible to play until the preceding requirement has been fulfilled. It is the responsibility of the coach to make the Referee aware of the restricted player fulfilling their obligation for the prior week send-off offence (note on game day card) so the player will be eligible for the next regular league game

day. If the player is issued two send-offs in one season that player and his or her coach must appear before the executive board.

A misconduct report must be filled out by the referee team. The report is to be forwarded to the Regional Referee Administrator to be reviewed by the Coach Administrator and Regional Commissioner.

### 13.3.3 Parent/Spectator Conduct

Coaches are responsible for the behavior of their team's spectators. Failure to maintain control could result in the parent/spectator being cautioned or ejected, that game being suspended and the team taking a forfeit.

### 13.3.4 Continued Disruptive Behavior

Any player, coach, parent or official that continues disruptive behavior or lack of self- control, may be required to appear before the Regional Executive Board for possible removal from the program, suspension or other discipline.

### 13.4 The Coach-Referee Team

Verbal abuse from adults on the sidelines unquestionably erodes players' confidence and the view of the importance of the AYSO philosophy. Without referees there is no AYSO, and sideline abuse is the number one problem associated with recruiting and retaining referees. The program depends upon recruiting and retaining the larger number of volunteers needed as qualified referees to handle matches held during the regular season. Referees must be able to depend upon their greatest ally in this area, the coaches. The vast majorities of AYSO coaches successfully balance their interest in winning with their desire to foster physical and social development of their players. These coaches appreciate the fact AYSO referees are unpaid volunteers like themselves, and often inexperienced in the game of soccer. They also understand the importance of the AYSO Team and know that Team members must cooperate and support each other. Most parents embrace these concepts, even if they have never been involved with AYSO.

Every season, a very small number of coaches and parents ignore the AYSO philosophy by elevating winning the match above all else. These individuals verbally abuse referees with insults and inappropriate comments. Sometimes they act purposefully, with the mistaken belief that such abuse will result in more favorable calls from the referee for the child's team. More often, it seems, such conduct is a reflection on the adult's character. Even though they are mostly loving and caring parents, these adults do not consider the extremely negative impact of their outbursts on the kids or the AYSO program. **This behavior will not be tolerated**.

## 13.5 Region 91's Policy on Abuse of Referees

Sadly, abuse of referees by a very few people can create disruption that reaches out to more current and potential volunteers than one would imagine. AYSO and Region 91 in particular, primarily take an educational approach to this problem. These educational efforts are, however,

backed up by official policies and appropriate disciplinary measures against offenders, including expulsion from the program.

Please remember that all of the referees are volunteers, most of them parents. They are not professionals (as you are not professional coaches) and usually have had minimal soccer experience. They will make mistakes. Players, coaches, and spectators must accept the referee's ruling, although they may disagree. Coaches and parents must provide an example of good sportsmanship and tolerance for their players and children. It is never appropriate to suggest that the referee determined the outcome of a game.

### 13.6 Negative Competition

A negative competitive environment narrows the range of youth that can benefit from AYSO, and discourages good people from volunteering, particularly as referees and coaches. The earmarks of overly intense negative competition are often apparent:

- Spectators yelling orders and directions to players from the sidelines.
- Coaches going beyond positive coaching to harshly commenting on the play, the players Coaches, spectators and players denigrating or complaining about the competitors, on either side of the field.
- Coaches, spectators and players openly grumbling about and disputing calls made or not made by the referee, and directing sexist or racist comments at game officials.
- Controlled expressions of disappointment are expected, however, dissent is not.
- Coaches training players to purposefully commit fouls for advantage and deception.
- Players purposefully using unfair, deceptive and sometimes dangerous practices to win, with the tacit approval of coaches and/or spectators.

### 13.7 Protests

The referee's decisions relating to the play of a match are final. No protests of games will be allowed under any circumstances.

### 13.8 Suspensions

All yellow cards and red cards are recorded on the game cards. In all Divisions, a player receiving a second yellow card in the same game or a red card will immediately leave the field and is suspended from the next game. In addition, the team will receive a 1-point deduction in Team Standings for any player sendoff or Coach/Assistant Coach/Spectator ejection. The Administrative Board will review repeated cautions or expulsions to determine if further action if necessary. If further action is required, it will be taken to the Executive Board.

### 14 TEAM STANDINGS POINT SYSTEM

## 14.1 Point System

# Applies to U-10 through U-14 Divisions ONLY

Team standings throughout the season are tracked using Standing Points that are awarded based on the outcome of regular season games. Standings are tracked online and can be accessed through the Region website. Points awarded are based on the following structure:

Result	Points Awarded
Win	3 points
Tie	1 point
Loss	0 points
Forfeit	0 points

Here is an example of use of the points system and how a division may finish at the end of a season.

Team	Wins	Losses	Ties	<b>Points</b>	Ranking
U10B6	7	1	2	26	1
U10B1	6	3	1	23	2
U10B2	6	3	1	23	3
U10B4	4	4	2	20	4
U10B5	5	5	0	20	5
U10B3	2	6	2	16	6

### 14.2 Deductions

The Region Board can deduct points from team standings for player, Coach, Assistant Coach, or spectator misconduct. Any player sendoff or Coach/Assistant Coach/Spectator ejection will result in a one-point deduction.

### 14.3 Final Standings

In the event of a tie in final standings, the tie will be broken using the following criteria:

- Head to head competition
- Most number of wins
- Least number of sportsmanship point deductions (1 point per misconduct, 1 point per coach/spectator incident)
- Goals allowed total (up to a maximum of five per game; fewest number advances)
- Goal differential

# 14.4 Post Season Eligibility

While team standings will determine where teams play in Post Season playoffs, teams will not advance to Post Season play if they have not earned the required number of Volunteer Points and attended the Player Evaluation Meeting. If a team is not eligible for Post Season play, then the next highest team will fill the available spot. Winning your division is not a guarantee of advancing to Post Season.

See <u>15.2 Post Season Eligibility</u> for more information.

# 15 Post Season Play

### 15.1 Area/Section Playoffs, All-Stars, and Tournament Teams

# Applies to U-10 through U-19 Divisions ONLY

At the conclusion of the regular season, opportunities exist for coaches and players to continue participation in a soccer program. The options available are:

- Regional playoffs are held for competitive divisions at the end of each regular season. IF
  THE COACH HAS NOT COMPLETED THE REQUIRED COACH CERTIFICATIONS, THE
  TEAM MAY BE DISBANDED AND NOT ALLOWED TO PLAY IN ANY PLAYOFF SERIES.
- Division Champions and Post Season Division Tournament Champions enter Area D
  Playoffs against other Regions' champions. This is a playoff tournament season that usually
  begins in January and continues as long as the team continues to win, ending with TriSection playoffs/championships. The duration of the playoff series (through Tri-Section
  Playoffs) is approximately six weeks with all games held on Saturdays AND Sundays.
- The All-Star Program begins with a selection process stemming from the regular league season. This is also a playoff tournament that usually begins in January and continues as long the team continues to win. The duration of the playoff series (through Tri-Section Playoffs) is approximately six weeks with all games held on Saturdays AND Sundays.
- U10 U14 Division Tournament teams begin with player tryouts in September. Teams will be selected and coached by approved Division certified coaches. These teams will play in AYSO sanctioned tournaments that are held in different Areas & Regions.
- U-16 and U-19 Division post-season play is limited to Area Playoffs and Section Playoffs for regular League season teams. No All-Star tournaments will be held for these upper divisions. Approved and Division certified coaches may form tournament teams and play a tournament season after High School CIF play has ended.

### 15.2 Coach Requirements for Post Season

It is the policy of the AYSO National Board of Directors that all coaches who coach in sanctioned AYSO tournaments, intra-sectional AYSO tournaments, non-AYSO tournaments, or participate in the AYSO National Games adhere to the AYSO National Policy Statements document.

It is the position of the National Coaching Commission that, for all Tournament Play and National Games play, all Tournament/National Games coaches and assistant coaches, at a minimum shall:

- 1. Be a registered volunteer in e-AYSO for the current year
- 2. Be Safe Haven trained and certified
- 3. Be trained and certified per the National Coaching Program Guidelines at the age/skill level of the team they wish to enter/coach

### 15.3 Post Season Eligibility

In an effort to encourage and reward coaches to take advantage of educational opportunities and to motivate them to help the region run more efficiently, Region 91 has instituted a points system that awards points for various volunteer positions to the competitive level divisions (U10, U12, and U14). These points may be awarded for attendance at certain meetings and training sessions as well as for completing certain tasks that are required by the Region and by AYSO.

<u>Not earning Volunteer Points will affect your team's post season eligibility.</u> Failure to earn the required number of Volunteer Points will disqualify your team from Region playoffs and other post season play.

### 15.3.1 Volunteer Points Available

<u>POST SEASON ELIGIBILITY NOTE:</u> Some of the line items below marked with an asterisk (\*) are also required for Post Season Eligibility. All coaches MUST Review of the Region 91 Coaches Manual to ensure compliance for all teams moving on to League Playoffs and other post season play.

**Fully Trained and Registered Coach\*** – Volunteer Registration Form filled out correctly, completely and turned in; Safe Haven Certification completed; and age appropriate Coach Training course(s) completed; Attends Mandatory Coach Meeting.

DUE DATE: 09/17/2016 (Season Week 2)

**Fully Trained and Registered Asst. Coach** – Volunteer Registration Form filled out correctly, completely and turned in; Safe Haven Certification completed; and age appropriate Coach Training course(s) completed.

Possible Volunteer Points = 1

DUE DATE: 09/24/2016 (Season Week 3)

**Fully Trained and Registered Team Parent** – Volunteer Registration Form filled out correctly, completely and turned in; Safe Haven Certification completed; and Attends Mandatory Team Parent Meeting.

Possible Volunteer Points = 1

DUE DATE: 09/24/2016 (Season Week 3)

**3 Referees\*** properly trained and certified from your team that earn a total of 20 volunteer points through refereeing during the regular season.

Possible Volunteer Points = 2 points for refereeing (center); 1 point each for assistant refereeing DUE DATE: 11/12/2016 (Season Week 10)

**Region Administration Tent Coverage** –Volunteer from your team (does not need to be a registered volunteer) who provides coverage at the Region Administration Tent for a minimum of one hour. Assigned tent duty times will be provided to coaches prior to the first week of regular season play.

Possible Volunteer Points = 1

DUE DATE: 11/12/2016 (Season Week 10)

**Region Skills Clinic Assistance** – Registered Volunteer from your team who provides assistance at one of the Region Skills Clinics.

Possible Volunteer Points = 1

DUE DATE: 11/02/2016 (Season Week 9)

**Game Day Setup / Tear-down** – Volunteer from your team (does not need to be a registered volunteer) who assists with setup before, or tearing down after game day. Assigned times will be provided to coaches prior to the first week of regular season play.

Possible Volunteer Points = 1

DUE DATE: 11/12/2016 (Season Week 10)

### **MANDATORY FOR PLAYOFF ELIGIBILITY (No Points)**

Player Evaluation Forms – DUE DATE: 10/22/2016 (Season Week 7)

Note: Failure to turn in the Evaluation forms will result in the team being ineligible for Region playoffs.

Player Evaluation Meeting –Dates to be Determined (Approximately Season Week 8)

Note: Failure to Attend the Evaluation Meeting will also result in the team being ineligible for Region playoffs.

Parent Meeting Roster - DUE DATE: 9/17/2016 (Season Week 2)

### 15.3.2 Registered and Trained Volunteers

# Assistant Coach & Team Parent

# Applies to U-10 through U-14 Divisions ONLY

Our team has a full roster of <u>Registered and Trained</u> volunteers. These are the volunteers who qualify my team to earn extra points:

If you do not PRINT CLEARLY on any given form, you may not receive the points for that item.

•		•
Assistant Coach	(Print Clearly)	Phone #
Team Parent	(Print Clearly)	Phone #
	arded if volunteers have turned in I completed the required training	n a correctly and completely filled out for their positions.
Signed		Date

**Volunteer Points Available:** 

**1 Point for Assistant Coach** 

**1 Point for Team Parent Volunteer** 

### 15.3.3 Regular League Team Requirements for Post Season Eligibility

The following are the team and/or player requirements each team or player MUST comply with in order to be considered eligible for any post season play.

**Note:** These requirements are in addition to earning the required Volunteer Points.

- 1. Each League team progressing on to League playoffs MUST have provided a minimum of three registered volunteers to act as Referees and/or Assistant Referees and earned a minimum of 25 volunteer points during the course of the current season. 20 points are earned through Refereeing, 1 point for game day set up or tear down, 1 point for manning the admin tent, 1 point for helping at a skills clinic, and 1 point each for having a certified assistant coach and team parent. Teams in U10, U12 and U14 that do not meet this requirement will not be considered for post- season play (League Playoffs).
- 2. Each League Team will have a Fully Trained and Registered Coach Volunteer Registration Form filled out correctly, completely and turned in; Safe Haven Certification completed (Safe Haven will be within the 2-year period for the current year), and age appropriate Coach Training course(s) completed (if an on-line class was taken, field work is still required and MUST be completed to be considered fully certified). Teams in U10, U12, and U14 that do not meet this requirement will not be considered eligible for post-season play (League Playoffs).
- 3. The Team Coach **MUST** turn in all Player Evaluation Forms for their team Teams that do not turn in Player Evaluation Forms will not be eligible for Region playoffs.
- 4. The Team Coach or Assistant Coach **MUST** attend the Player Evaluation Meeting for their division and gender Teams in U10, U12, and U14 that do not meet this requirement will not be eligible for Region playoffs.
- 5. Each League team progressing on to Post Season play MUST provide a FULL "age-appropriate referee team (1 Referee and two Assist Referees) to referee for their teams at all Post Season Playoffs (League, Area, Section, and Tri-State). Any team NOT complying with this requirement will not move on past regular season or at any point during post season play they stop providing the Referees the team will be removed from further post season play. There is NO exception to this requirement. A list of team referees will be required upon notification of placement in Post Season Playoffs (League, Area, Section, and Tri-State). Teams in U10, U12, and U14 that do not meet this requirement will not be considered for post-season play (league Playoffs).
- 6. Each team progressing on to Post Season play MUST provide team volunteers as designated by the Region/Area/Section at all Post Season Playoffs (League, Area, Section & Tri-State). There is NO exception to this requirement. Any team NOT complying with this requirement will not move on past regular season or at any point they stop providing the Team Volunteers. A list of team volunteers will be required upon notification of placement. Teams in U10, U12, and U14 that do not meet this requirement will not be considered for Post Season play (League Playoffs).

### 15.3.4 All-Star Team Requirements for Post Season Eligibility

All-Star Teams in U10, U12, and U14 that do not meet these requirements **will not** be considered for Post Season play.

- 1. Each All-Star team progressing on to Post Season Play MUST provide a FULL "age-appropriate" referee team to referee for their teams at all Post Season Playoffs (Area, Section & Tri-State). Any team NOT complying with this requirement will not move on past regular season or at any point they stop providing the Referees the team will be removed from further post season play. There is NO exception to this requirement. A list of team referees will be required upon notification of placement in Post Season Playoffs (League, Area, Section and Tri-State).
- 2. Each All-Star team progressing on to Post Season Play MUST provide team volunteers as designated by the Region/Area/Section at all Post Season Playoffs (Area, Section & Tri-State). There is NO exception to this requirement. Any team NOT complying with this requirement will not move on past regular season or at any point they stop providing the Team Volunteers. A list of team volunteers will be required upon notification of placement.

### 15.4 All-Star Coach Selection

All-Star coaches are chosen near the middle of the season (October). Coaches and Assistant Coaches will be scouted by the Region 91 Board of Directors. Coaches will be selected by the Administrative Board based on coaching experience, previous All-Star & tournament team coaching experience and intent to coach a tournament team. While All-Star coaching is at a higher level of competition, we will not forego our organizational principals in order to win. Each coach identified as a candidate to be an All-Star coach must also meet the following criteria:

- 1. All Coaches and Assistant Coaches must be division certified and have coached in that division.
- 2. He/She must be in good standing with the Regional board.
- 3. He/She must have demonstrated good player, game and spectator control throughout the season.
- 4. Each coach must have completed Safe Haven for Coaches training, required ageappropriate Coach Training courses, and have a current volunteer form on file with AYSO.

The Administrative Board will make all decisions on All-Star Coaches and Assistant Coaches. The Administrative Board may request an interview session with each of the coaches that have applied. In the event that no qualified coach applies for a particular division, then the Administrative Board may appoint a staff member, or recruit from the season's pool of certified coaches.

### 15.5 All-Star Team Selection

A player's skill, attitude, sportsmanship, dedication, and a willingness to put in extra hours playing soccer weigh heavily when choosing players for the All-Star team. It is possible that a skilled player will not be selected if, in the opinion of the coaches and/or regional administrative board members, a player or his/her parents are divisive or disruptive to team unity. Although All-

Star and Tournament teams are supported by Region 91 and represent the region, these teams are not part of the regular program.

All Star teams will be formed using the following process:

- Coaches will nominate players from their own team that they feel are All-Star caliber players.
- Coaches may nominate outstanding players that they have noticed on other teams.
- Some players may be identified by Division Coordinators in their respective divisions.
- Not all players identified will be selected.
- In some cases, not all teams will be represented in this selection process.
- Player evaluations will be taken into consideration.
- A player is not eligible if they have not played in at least half (5) of their team's regularseason games.

Once this information is gathered, a list of All-Star players will be created as follows:

<u>U-10:</u> The team will consist of no more than 10 players. Players eligible for All-Stars will be selected by the head coach of the All-Star team. Final approval of those players selected will be given by the RC, RCA and Division Coordinator.

<u>U-12:</u> The team will consist of no more than 12 players. Players eligible for All-Stars will be selected by the head coach of the All-Star team. Final approval of those players selected will be given by the RC, RCA and Division Coordinator.

<u>U-14:</u> The team will consist of no more than 15 players. Players eligible for All-Stars will be selected by the head coach of the All-Star team. Final approval of those players selected will be given by the RC, RCA and Division Coordinator.

Both players and coaches must be available to participate on Saturdays AND Sundays, as many games are played on both days.

Being a coach or a player on an All Star team is a privilege not a right.

### 15.6 All-Star Uniforms

All Star uniforms will be purchased by the region. These uniforms may be worn for games only when participating in All-Star play. These uniforms may not be worn when participating in a scrimmage game unless this game has uniformed referees and is authorized by the Regional Commissioner.

The All-Star uniform color will be Red, White and Blue. The style will be determined by the Executive Board.

Uniforms purchased will consist of shirt, shorts, and socks.

### 15.7 All-Star Finances

Banking: All-Star banking will be conducted through the Region 91 Primary checking account.

Fund raisers: All fund raisers must be authorized by the Regional Commissioner.

ALL Special event fundraising will fall under the Region 91 Fundraising and Sponsorship Protocol.

### 15.8 Tournament Team Coach Selection

Tournament team coaches may or may not be the same person as the All-Star coach.

Tournament coaches are chosen near the middle of the season (October). Head coaches and Assistant coaches will be scouted by the Region 91 Board of Directors. Coaches will be selected by the Administrative Board based on coaching experience, previous All-Star & tournament team coaching experience and intent to coach a tournament team. While Tournament coaching is at a higher level of competition, we will not forego our organizational principals in order to win. Each coach identified as a candidate to be a Tournament coach must also meet the following criteria:

- 1. All Coaches and Assistant Coaches must be division certified and have coached in that division.
- 2. He/She must be in good standing with the Regional board.
- 3. He/She must have demonstrated good player, game and spectator control throughout the season.
- 4. Each coach must have completed Safe Haven for Coaches training, required ageappropriate Coach Training courses, and have a current volunteer form on file with AYSO.

The Administrative Board will make all decisions on Tournament Team Coaches and Assistant Coaches. The Administrative Board may request an interview session with each of the coaches that have applied. In the event that no qualified coach applies for a particular division, then the regional board may appoint a staff member, or recruit from the season's pool of coaches.

### 15.9 Tournament Team Selection

A player's skill, attitude, sportsmanship, dedication, and a willingness to put in even more hours playing soccer weigh heavily when choosing players for the tournament team. It is possible that a skilled player will not be selected if, in the opinion of the coaches and/or regional administrative board members, a player or his or her parents are disruptive to team unity. Although tournament teams are supported by Region 91 and represent the region, these teams are not part of the regular core program.

Tournament teams will be formed using the following process:

- Players will be provided with a "letter of intent" form that is to be filled out, signed by the
  player's parents and turned in at the Tournament Team Tryouts. This letter will explain the
  costs, travel, and dedication required of a tournament team player and his/her family.
- Not all players that submit a letter will be selected.
- All players will participate in a tournament team tryout session around mid-season (September and October).

- Players must be registered and played in AYSO during the current regular core season.
- The tournament team coach will evaluate and recruit players from the teams in their division. These players will be required to try out for the tournament team.
- The coach's child will be required to participate in tryouts if they are to be considered for placement on the team.
- A player is not eligible if they have not played in at least half (5) of their team's core regularseason games.

Once this information is gathered, the coach will submit a list of requested players and alternates to the Regional Coach Administrator for approval by the Regional Board.

Team size is as follows:

<u>U-10:</u> The team will consist of no more than 10 players. An alternate player list should consist of at least 5 players.

<u>U-12:</u> The team will consist of no more than 12 players. An alternate player list should consist of at least 5 players.

<u>U-14:</u> The team will consist of no more than 15 players. An alternate player list should consist of at least 5 players.

Both players and coaches must be available to participate on Saturdays AND Sundays, as many tournaments games are played on both days.

Being a coach or a player on a tournament team is a privilege not a right.

<u>U16/U19:</u> The Upper Divisions may be exempt from the tryout process depending on the size of these divisions and interest of players. Speak to the Coach Administrator regarding this tournament age group prior to Post season play.

### 15.10 Tournament Uniforms

Tournament uniforms will be purchased by the players. The style and color will be determined by the regional executive board. These uniforms may be worn for games only when participating in an authorized AYSO Tournament. These uniforms may not be worn when participating in a scrimmage game unless this game has uniformed referees and is authorized by the Regional Commissioner. Any coach wishing to participate in a non-sanctioned event with their AYSO Tournament team and wear the AYSO uniform will require prior authorization from the Region 91 Administrative Board. Any Coach that does not obtain prior approval for these activities will be brought to the Administrative Board for disciplinary action that could include removal of the coach from the Tournament program and potential disbandment of the Tournament team.

### **15.11 Tournament Team Finances**

Tournament teams must conduct banking thru the regions Cultural Exchange account. Tournament teams are responsible for all tournament, referee, and uniform expenses. At no time may Region 91 funds be expended for Tournament team expenses.

Fundraisers are encouraged. All fund raisers that are planned for a Region 91 tournament team must be approved by the executive board.

ALL Special event fundraising will fall under the Region 91 Fundraising and Sponsorship Protocol.

### 15.12 Additional Post Season Info

### 15.12.1 Number of Tournament Teams

The number of tournament teams in each division and gender will be directly related to the number of interested coaches and players. If there are enough interested coaches and players to form more than one Tournament team, the Tournament teams will NOT be balanced, both an "A" team and a "B" team will be created, with the players grouped by skill level.

We at Region 91 know that we have many talented players that do not make the All Star teams. We encourage coaches to look strongly at these players when forming tournament teams.

### 15.12.2 Post Season Player Requirements

In order to play on a Region 91 Tournament team, the player must have been registered in AYSO during the current regular season, played at least half of the season, and be in good standing within their own Region, or they may not participate. Due to the high player count, there will be no exceptions to this rule for divisions U10, U12 and U14. After exhausting the player list for divisions U16 or U19, the coach may, with the Region's Commissioner and the Coach Administrator's permission, go outside the region for players. These players must have been registered in AYSO during the current regular season, played at least half of the season, and be in good standing within their own region, or they may not participate.

### 15.12.3 Post Season Team Protocol

Players, coaches and parents represent Lancaster AYSO Region 91 when traveling to tournaments. Failure to act within Region 91's guidelines could result in suspension or removal from the team. Therefore, any player or coach that receives a send-off will be subject to review by the Region 91 Administrative Review Board.

Any player or coach receiving 3 cautions during the course of a single tournament during Post Season Play will be considered the same as a send-off offense. The offending individual(s) will be required to meet with the Region 91 Administrative Review Board for Corrective action. That player may be suspended or removed from the Tournament or All-Star team. In the case of a coach the team may be disbanded.

Any player or coach receiving 2 cautions in the same post season tournament or 3 cautions during the course of Post Season Play will be required to meet with the Region 91 Administrative Review Board for corrective action. That player may be suspended or removed from the post season team. In the case of a player, that player may be replaced by another player from the approved player list. In the case of a coach the team may be disbanded.

### Region 91 Coaches Manual

While participating on a Lancaster AYSO Region 91 Tournament team, all tournaments and activities will be AYSO sanctioned events. Failure to act within Region 91's guidelines could result in suspension or removal from the team. Therefore, any coach wishing to participate in a non-sanctioned event with their ASYO Tournament team will require prior authorization from the Administrative board. Any coach that does not obtain prior approval for these activities will be brought to the Disciplinary Board for disciplinary action that could include removal of the coach from the Tournament program and potential disbandment of the tournament team.

Where: North Side of Field 20

# **Appendix I: Sample Letters and Forms**

# A I.1 Sample Letter for Parent Meeting

Parents,

It is a privilege to coach your children. Much of our success this season will be due to each parent's willingness to help when and where possible. There are many jobs to do on this team such as: Assistant Coach, Team Parent, Referee and Assistant Referee. Every parent is invited to assist as often as possible as this gives me more time to focus on coaching your children. With your help we'll make this a fun season for everyone!

, ,		ntended to help each pl it's not everything. My g	•	•			
			ı	certainly	think	we	 car
accomplish this	with everyone's help.						
I can't wait to st	art working with you ch	nildren, and I'm sure we'l	ll all	have a gre	at seasc	on!	
Thank you,							
Coach	Phone:	Email:					
Important Info	ormation:						
Important dates	X:						
August 16 <sup>th</sup> – To	eam Parents Meeting -	- this is when uniforms a	re h	anded out.			
August 17 <sup>th</sup> – O	pening Day/Picture Da	у					
September 10 <sup>th</sup>	– First Game day						
November 12 <sup>th</sup>	– Last Regular Season	Game					
Note: I will hand	d out the game schedul	le as soon as it is availal	ole				
Practices:							
When: Mondays	s and Wednesdays, 6:0	00 – 7:00					

<sup>\*</sup> Practice days/times are subject to change. You will be notified of any changes as soon as I am aware of them.

### Region 91 Coaches Manual

What your child needs to bring with them to every game and practice:

- WATER
- A soccer ball (Size 4) that is properly inflated
- Cleats or appropriate shoes
- Shin Guards (your child cannot practice or play without them)
- Uniform (games only not to be worn to practice. You may use uniforms from past years for practice)

What is NOT allowed at practices or games?

- Earrings, rings, necklaces or any other jewelry
- Beads, clips or anything else worn in the hair that is hard

Please Note: Players with serious injuries incurred on or off the soccer field will be required to furnish a doctor's note and may also be subject to further Board approval prior to returning to play.

The following are the Laws of the Game that apply in this age group. We will discuss each of these so that you understand them too. If you have any questions about them during the season, feel free to ask.

- 1. The Start of Play
- 2. The Kick Off
- 3. Ball in and Out of Play
- 4. Method of Scoring
- 5. Fouls
- 6. Misconduct
- 7. Free Kicks
- 8. Penalty Kicks
- 9. Throw-In
- 10. Goal Kick
- 11. Corner Kick
- 12. Offside

# A I.2 Sample Parent's Agreement Form

# **Kids Zone Parent Pledge**

Please read, initial each item, sign at the end, and return to the coach or the appropriate AYSO volunteer.

1. I pledge to be on time or early when bringing my child it may be uncomfortable for my child to be late to a game risk if not provided with adequate time to warm up. I practices and games, but if I do not, I will be there whe for the coach, who has other time commitments, and it	ne or practice and that he/she is subject to physical understand that I am encouraged to stay during n he/she is finished. Being punctual shows respect
2. I understand that the top three reasons kids play spew skills. I understand that the game is for the kids, a sport in its proper perspective. I understand that athlete so I will be positive and supportive.	and I will encourage my child to have fun and keep
3. I will redefine what it is to be a "Winner" in my commake the maximum effort, continue to learn and implemistakes, discourage them. I understand that mistakes learn from their mistakes. I understand that all children measure of success is not how my child compares to his/her best self	rove, and do not let mistakes, or fear of making are an inevitable part of any game and that people n are born with different abilities and that the true
4. I will "Honor the Game." I understand the important my child. I will show respect for all involved in the game fans, and referees. I understand that officials, coaches a call I do not agree with, I will refrain from questioning or her	e including coaches, players, opponents, opposing , and players make mistakes. If the referee makes
<ol> <li>I understand that games can be exciting for my child game, responds to opponents, referees, teammates, are During the game, I will make only sportsmanlike commoboth teams.</li> </ol>	nd listens to coaches. I will not yell out instructions.
6. I will not make negative comments about the game presence. This sets a bad example, which can negative experience. I agree to act in a sportsmanlike manner a violent atmosphere.	tively influence my child's motivation and overall
agree to honor the AYSO Parent Pledge in my words	and actions.
Parent Signature	Print Child's Name

© 2003 Rev. 5/03 American Youth Soccer Organization

### A I.3 Sample - All-Star or Tournament Coach Consideration Letter

Lancaster AYSO® Region 91 POB #6733 October 4, 2016 Lancaster, CA 93539-6733

RE: Tournament/All-Star Coach Consideration

Dear Region 91 Board,

I would like to be considered as the Boys U-12 All-Star and/or Tournament coach for the 2016-2017 Post Seasons.

I have been a successful AYSO coach in Region 742 and Region 91 over the past 5 seasons and I believe strongly in the AYSO philosophies. I measure my success not on wins and losses, but on the improvements of my players over each season and the number of players that return each season after playing on one of my teams. I have completed the required Safe Haven for Coaches Course, the Basic Coach Course and the Youth U-12 Coach Course.

Beyond coaching soccer, I am also a certified AYSO Intermediate Referee, and have coached Basketball for the City of Anywhere and Little League baseball at Park View Little League.

If chosen, I intend to coach the team through the All-Star Playoff series and then plan to continue on to make this into a Tournament team that will play year-round in other AYSO tournaments. I am very well versed in the teachings of AYSO and believe that I can represent our region well.

Thank you for your consideration,

John Doe

123 Main Street

Anywhere, CA 93535

(661) 555-1212

# A I.4 ALL-STAR PLAYER RECCOMENDTION FORM

My team and I would like to nominate the following players from our team for the All-Star Team. I/we understand that the following players may or may not actually be placed on the All-Star Team, but we think it'd be great if they were.

Choice 1

Jersey #

Choice 2	Jersey #
Choice 3	Jersey #
Signed	 Date
Printed Name	
Team Name	

# A I.5 Trophy Roster Form

Team Name	Team Number					
Coach						
Assistant Coach						
Player Name (As it is to appear on Trophy or Me	edal)	Player#	Parent Signature			
			-			
			-			

# Appendix II: Calendar, Helpful Websites & Contact Info

For the most up to date region information, visit the region website:

www.region91.org/calendar

# Websites:

AYSO National <a href="http://www.ayso.org/">http://www.ayso.org/</a>

AYSO Section 10 <a href="http://www.aysosection10.org/">http://www.aysosection10.org/</a>

AYSO Area 10 D <a href="http://area10d.org/">http://area10d.org/</a>

AYSO Region 91 Website <a href="http://www.region91.org/">http://www.region91.org/</a> or

http://www.lancasterAYSO.com

AYSO Online Registration Tool <a href="https://www.eayso.org/">https://www.eayso.org/</a>

AYSO Store <a href="http://www.aysostore.com/">http://www.aysostore.com/</a>

Score Sports <a href="http://www.scoresports.com">http://www.scoresports.com</a>

SoccerOne <a href="https://www.soccerone.com/">https://www.soccerone.com/</a>

Lancaster National Soccer Center <a href="http://www.lancastersoccercenter.com/">http://www.lancastersoccercenter.com/</a>

# **Region 91 Contact Info:**

Lancaster AYSO® Region 91

P.O. Box 6733 Lancaster, CA 93539-6733